
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING  MAY 20, 2015   Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY MAY 20, 2015 7:00 PM 

61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CALIFORNIA 92252 

AGENDA 
 

 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

This is the opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters within the Board’s 

jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda.  Please limit comments to three (3) minutes or less.  

State law prohibits the Board of Directors from discussing or taking action on items not included on 

the agenda.  

 

Pgs. 1-4 

 

 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will 

be adopted in total by one action of the Board of Directors unless any Board Member or any 

individual or organization interested in one or more consent calendar items wishes to be heard. 

A. Approve Draft Minutes of the April 15, 2015 Regular Meeting of the Board of 

Directors 

 

Pg. 5 

 

 

 

 

 

Pgs. 6-7 

 

 

 

 

Pg. 8 

 

 

 

7. 

 

 

 

 

 

8. 

 

 

 

 

9. 

 

 

 

UPDATE ON CHROMIUM 6 – COMPLIANCE ORDER FROM DIVISION OF DRINKING 

WATER, STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 

Recommend that the Board accept for information only.  Staff will provide background information 

on an upcoming Compliance Order and a Tier II notification concerning Hexavalent Chromium 

(Chromium 6). 

 

BRIEFING ON STATE WATER RESOURCE CONTROL BOARD (SWRCB) ORDINANCE 

AND GOVERNOR BROWN’S EXECUTIVE ORDER 

Recommend that the Board receive briefing on these two items and the potential impacts to 

District/Community. 

 

REVISION OF CONSERVATION ORDINANCE 

Recommend that the Board consider authorizing staff and General Counsel to proceed with the 

preparation of an amended Conservaton Ordinance that is consistent with the conceptual changes 

discussed tonight and to authorize a Public Hearing to consider adoption of an amended ordinance. 

PO Box 675 • 61750 Chollita Road • Joshua Tree CA  92252 
Phone (760) 366-8438 • Fax (760) 366-9528 • www.jbwd.com 

An Equal Opportunity Provider 

http://www.jbwd.com/


                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING  MAY 20, 2015   Page 2 of 2 
 

Pgs. 9-12 

 

 

Pg. 13 

 

 

 

Pg. 14 

 

 

 

 

Pgs. 15-49 

 

 

 

10. 

 

 

11. 

 

  

 

 12. 

 

 

 

 

13. 

RECONSIDERATION OF THE ALTAMIRA WILL SERVE LETTER REQUEST 

Recommend that the Board consider and direct staff on this request. 

 

SUSPENSION OF CARPI CLAY LOBBYIST SERVICES 

Recommend that the Board direct the General Manager to suspend using Carpi Clay for lobbying 

services until needed. 

 

COMPLETION OF 2015 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Recommend that the Board approve the use of Kennedy Jenks consulting to complete the required 

2015 Urban Water Management Plan for a cost not to exceed $47,000, with a contingency of no 

more than 10%. 

 

THIRD QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORT 

Recommend that the Board receive and accept report. 

  14. STANDING: 

A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and Director Unger:   

Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant to report. 

B. FINANCE COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Director Johnson 

C. WATER RESOURCES & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and 

Director Johnson. 

 15. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

This is the opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters within the Board’s 

jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda.  Please limit comments to three (3) minutes or less.  

State law prohibits the Board of Directors from discussing or taking action on items not included on 

the agenda. 
 

 16. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT  
 

 17. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 18. FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 

Mojave Water Agency Technical Advisory Committee Meeting June 4
th
, 10:00AM  in Apple Valley 

Mojave Water Agency Board Meeting May 28
th
  

 

 19. INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 

 20. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 

 21. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 22. ADJOURNMENT 

 

INFORMATION 
 

The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water 

District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 

accommodation. 
 

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 

inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 
 

This meeting is scheduled to be broadcast on Time Warner Cable Channel 10 on May 27 at 7:00 pm and June 3 at 7:00 pm.   

DVD recordings of Joshua Basin Water District Board meetings are available at the District office and at the Joshua Tree Library 



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING APRIL 15, 2015   Page 1 of 4 
 

 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 

April 15, 2015 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 
 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Victoria Fuller 

Bob Johnson 

Mickey Luckman 

Mike Reynolds 

Rebecca Unger 
 

Present 

Present 

Present 

Present 

Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Curt Sauer, General Manager 

Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 

Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 

Randy Little, Water Production Supervisor 

Jim Corbin, Distribution Supervisor 

 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel, Redwine & Sherrill 

Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 

Mike Metts, Engineer, Dudek 
 

GUESTS 11 

 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  

MSC Luckman/Johnson 5/0 to approve the agenda for the April 15, 2015 meeting.  

  Fuller  Aye  

  Johnson Aye 

  Luckman Aye  

  Reynolds Aye  

  Unger   Aye  
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

         Frederick Klintworth of Joshua Tree: Sharing cookies with the group. 
 

6.     CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

MSC Luckman/Reynolds, 5/0 to approve Draft Minutes of the April 1, 2015 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

with the following changes requested by Director Reynolds:  

 

Item #9 in Public Comments:  add that the Board Chair denied the request of Richard Fountain representing Kay Keene 

the opportunity to question Mr. Metts, contracted Engineer. 

 

Item #16 in Director’s Comments: correct that the County of San Bernardino, not CalTrans was using water trucks to 

wash the streets. 

             Fuller  Aye  

             Johnson              Aye 

Page 1 of 49



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING APRIL 15, 2015   Page 2 of 4 
 

 

             Luckman Aye  

             Reynolds Aye 

             Unger   Aye 

 

7.   RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR SHIRLEY BOLHA UPON HER RETIREMENT 

Shirley Bolha was not present at the meeting as anticipated.  GM Curt Sauer and Assistant GM Susan Greer provided 

positive commentary, and Susan Greer read the resolution. 

MSC Reynolds/ Luckman, 5/0 to adopt Resolution 15-948. 

                       Fuller           Aye  

           Johnson           Aye 

           Luckman           Aye  

           Reynolds           Aye 

          Unger            Aye 
 

     

8.   PRESENTATION ON HYDRO PROFILING – CHROMIUM 6 

General Manager Curt Sauer provided some background regarding new regulations from the Public Health Department 

in 2014 with regards to Chromium 6. 

 

JBWD wells were tested in December 2014 and March 2015 for Chromium 6.  Four of five of the wells do not meet 

current regulations for Chromium 6 levels.  Senate Bill 385, recently introduced, provides for a variance from the 

hexavalent chromium standard for up to 5 years to districts not meeting the standard Chromium 6 levels if following a 

compliance plan, thus JBWD can be out of compliance while actively working towards a resolution. 

 

General Manager met with Senator Mayes on May 6
th
 in Sacramento, CA. GM Sauer has attended a public workshop, 

and is researching potential monies available through grants and loans. 

 

Dudek will be actively involved in program development and obtaining grant money. 

 

     Noah Heller, President of BESST Incorporated, gave the presentation. 

     Questions and discussion followed from the Board and from the Public.  

 

The Board received the information on the purpose of funding a hydro profiling project. 

  

9.   PRESENTATION ON ANION TESTING 

Miguel Arias-Paic of the Bureau of Reclamation gave the presentation.  

Findings from this study will be used to determine best treatments for treating chromium 6 with anion exchange. 

 

Questions regarding research on waste products (brine) followed the presentation.  

 

Directors expressed appreciation for the presentation and expressed support for the research proposal by the Bureau of 

Reclamation to test ion exchange treatments specific to JBWD water conditions, and the potential application to other 

small community water districts with chromium 6 concerns. 

     

10.   APPROVAL OF FUNDING FOR HYDRO PROFILING, AS PART OF THE DISTRICT’S CHROMIUM 6 

TREATMENT PLAN 

General Manager clarified that the testing will cost $28,659, and any additional monies would be utilized for 

laboratory testing and other miscellaneous costs. Funding is in the 2014/2015 budget. 

 

Completing this testing will put the JBWD in a better position to apply for grant monies. 

 

Page 2 of 49



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING APRIL 15, 2015   Page 3 of 4 
 

 

MSC Reynolds/ Luckman, 5/0  to direct General Manager to enter into an agreement with BESST Technologies to 

hydro profile one well and receive a report of findings, with the project not to exceed $31,000. 

                       Fuller           Aye  

           Johnson           Aye 

           Luckman           Aye  

           Reynolds           Aye 

          Unger            Aye 

 

11.   FINANCE REPORT 

Susan Greer gave the report. 

Director Reynolds commented that JBWD needs to address the shortfall of revenue due to the decrease of water use by 

looking at cutting our costs as opposed to raising our rates. 

 

The Board accepted the report for information only. 

 

12.   UPDATE ON CREDIT CARD OUTSOURCING 

The new system with Paymentus providing the service will be implemented as of May 1, 2015. 

The Board received update on credit card outsourcing as information only. 

  

13.   NOMINATION OF LUKE SABALA TO THE CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

General Manager noted Mr. Sabala’s geotechnological and hydrologic areas of expertise are especially pertinent and 

advantageous to the CAC and to the Board at this time, and that Mr. Sabala meets all criteria of membership. 

 

MSC Luckman/Johnson, 5/0 to appoint Luke Sabala to the Citizens Advisory Committee. 

                       Fuller           Aye  

           Johnson           Aye 

           Luckman           Aye  

           Reynolds           Aye 

          Unger            Aye 

 

14.   REVIEW OF STANDING AND AD HOC COMMITTEES 

  

    STANDING: 

A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE:  Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant, gave the report.  

Information about Paymentus and the Drought Ordinance are included with the water bill.  The JBWD 

booth at the Saturday Farmer’s Market is busy and Directors are encouraged visit; tortoises will be at the 

booth in May.  The Legal and Public Information Committee meeting scheduled for May 6
th
 has been 

cancelled. Ms. Radnich discussed a form that is available for reporting wasted water.  The goal is to give 

people and businesses the opportunity to correct problems with water wasting. 

B. FINANCE COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Director Johnson: Inactive meters will be a priority topic. 

C. WATER RESOURCES & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE:  Vice President Luckman and Director Johnson:  

The meeting is scheduled for April 22, 2015. 

 

15. PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 

           

16. DISTRICT COUNSEL REPORT 

No report. Counselor Granito commented that a decision is anticipated by next Monday on Proposition 285, which 

has been in appellate court for a year and a half. 

Page 3 of 49



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING APRIL 15, 2015   Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 

17. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 

           The USGS nitrate study has been accepted for publication and will be out in May.  With regards to the     

Governor’s conservation order, there is a strategy planning meeting planned for 4-16-2015. 

 

18. FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 

          CRWA 2015 Education and Exhibitor Expo: April 27-30 

           ACWA Conference: May 4-8 

           Mojave Water Agency Board Meeting: May 14 (4:30-5:30) 

 

       19. INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 

Directors that attended FEMA Training Conference last week found it informative. President Fuller attended a 

Drought Conference in Victorville and will report further in the future. 

 

      20. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS:  

Director Reynolds mentioned ideas for conserving water. 

 

       21.     FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

                  None.     

       

      22.     ADJOURNMENT 

 

      MSC Luckman/Reynolds 5/0 to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of April 15, 2015 at 8:58 pm 

                 Fuller                   Aye  

                 Johnson      Aye 

                 Luckman      Aye  

                 Reynolds      Aye  

                 Unger                    Aye 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Respectfully submitted:  

 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Curt Sauer, General Manager and Board Secretary 

 

Page 4 of 49



Page 5 of 49



Page 6 of 49



Page 7 of 49



Page 8 of 49



Page 9 of 49



GWE DRAFT  (5/6/2015) 

1 

 

[JBWD LETTERHEAD] 

 

CONDITIONAL WILL SERVE LETTER – Wednesday, May 20, 2015 

 

Terra Nova Planning & Research, Inc. 

Attn:  John D. Criste, President 

42635 Melanie Pl., #101 

Palm Desert, CA  92211 

 

 Re: Domestic Water and Sanitation Service for 248 Residential Units (“Project”) Tentative 

Tract 

  Map #18255 to Property APN: 0601-211-09 & 0601-211-13 (“Property”) 

  Owner/Applicant:  Terra Nova Planning & Research, Inc. 

 

Dear Mr. Criste, 

 

 The purpose of this letter is to inform Terra Nova Planning & Research, Inc., owner of the 

Property (“Owner"), as follows: 

 

WATER SERVICE 

 

Water Availability 

 

 Currently there is an ample supply of potable water within the Joshua Basin Water District 

("District") to serve the Project.  This letter does not guarantee that there is a main line adjacent to 

the Project, which shall be required in order to obtain domestic water service.  Water service will be 

made available to the Project subject to the following terms and conditions: 

 

 1. Water Service - The initiation of water service to the Project shall be contingent upon 

the "availability of water" pursuant to the prevailing regulations and ordinances of the District in 

effect at the time that water service is scheduled to commence.  In addition, the District shall not be 

responsible for conditions that are beyond the District's control such as acts of God, federal, state or 

county regulatory agency requirements or decisions, or legal actions initiated by others. 

 

 2. Water System Evaluation – Prior to construction, Owner will be required to document 

in a manner satisfactory to District, in District’s sole and absolute discretion (e.g. Water System 

Evaluation Study) the facilities required to supply domestic water to the Project. 

 

 3. Facilities – Owner shall construct and convey to District, at no cost to the District, 

water facilities needed as determined by the District at its sole discretion, to provide water service to 

the Project, in order to maintain the District's ability, as solely determined by the District, to meet 

water demands, storage and fire flow requirements of the Project.  Such facilities include, but are not 

limited to, storage reservoirs, pump stations, pipelines and pipeline extensions.  All of the terms and 

conditions concerning said construction and operation shall be the subject of a separate agreement or 

agreements.  This Conditional Will Serve Letter is contingent upon the ability of the parties to agree 

on all such terms and conditions of such agreement(s). 

 

Page 10 of 49



GWE DRAFT  (5/6/2015) 

2 

 

SANITATION SERVICE 

 

 

 1. Wastewater System Evaluation - Owner will be required to document in a manner 

satisfactory to the Regional Water Quality Control Board (“Regional Board”), the District (e.g. 

Wastewater System Evaluation) and any other agency having jurisdiction over the Property, in such 

agencies’ sole and absolute discretion the facilities required to handle wastewater conveyance, 

treatment and disposal from the  Project. 

 

 2. Facilities and Operations - In conformance with any such Wastewater System, Owner 

shall install, at Owner’s sole cost and expense, a package sewer treatment plant and collection system 

or such other wastewater system as shall be approved by the Regional Board  and  the District, in 

their sole and absolute discretion.  All of the terms and conditions concerning the construction of the 

Wastewater System and its operations shall be the subject of a separate agreement or  agreements  

regarding construction and operation.  This Conditional Will Serve Letter is contingent upon the 

ability of the parties to agree on all such terms and conditions of such agreement(s). 

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO WATER SERVICE AND SANITATION 

SERVICE 

 

 1. The Owner must comply with all of the rules, regulations and policies of the District 

as they presently exist and as they are amended from time to time including but not limited to the 

payment of all fees and charges.  In addition, Owner must comply with all of the laws, rules, 

regulations, ordinances and policies of all governmental and quasi governmental agencies having 

jurisdiction over the Property as they presently exist and as they are amended from time to time. 

 

2. Prior to construction of the Project, or any phase thereof, including any alteration to the 

District's existing facilities, Owner shall prepare and submit to the District for approval, which 

approval may be withheld in District’s sole and absolute discretion detailed construction plans and/or 

studies showing proposed new water and sanitation facilities, including extensions and modifications 

to the District's existing facilities. 

 

 3. Prior to the approval of construction plans by the District, Owner shall enter into an 

agreement for the purpose of providing the District with funds with which the District may pay 

expenses incurred by District in processing Owner's Application for Water and Sanitation Service 

(e.g. plan check fees, engineering fees, legal fees and administrative fees, etc.). 

 

 4. Depending on the circumstances and at the sole determination of the District, certain 

developments require that the District procure consulting engineering services to verify the ability of 

the existing and proposed water and wastewater systems to meet the demands of proposed 

developments.  The costs of such services shall be added to the plan check and inspection fees 

referenced in item 3 above, all of which are due and payable prior to the District's approval of 

construction plans. 

 

 5. Prior to the approval of construction plans, Owner shall prepare and execute 

easements, rights of way, and any other instruments necessary in order to complete the dedication of 

facilities to the District.  Said instruments shall be prepared subject to the District's approval, which 

Page 11 of 49



GWE DRAFT  (5/6/2015) 

3 

 

approval may be withheld in District’s sole and absolute discretion and shall be prepared and 

executed at no cost to the District. 

 6. Prior to construction, Owner shall pay to the District appropriate Water Capacity 

Charges and Wastewater Capacity Charges as determined by the District.  Depending on the 

circumstances, the District's regulations provide for the payment of certain charges by Owner and 

said charges are subject to change.  Receipt of all applicable charges are due and payable prior to the 

initiation of water and/or sanitation services or as otherwise set forth in the agreements referred to in 

Water Service Section 3 and Sanitation Service Section 2 above. 

 

 7. All rights, privileges, and conditions of this Conditional Will Serve Letter are made to 

Owner and shall not be assigned, hypothecated or transferred to another person/entity or parcel 

without the prior written consent of the District which consent may be withheld in District’s sole and 

absolute discretion.  In the event District consents to such assignment, hypothecation or transfer 

District reserves the right to impose further requirements, which it deems appropriate. 

 

 8. This Conditional Will Serve Letter is a letter of intent only.  There is no legally 

binding or enforceable contract between the parties pertaining to the subject matter of this letter, and 

statements of intent or understanding in this letter do not constitute an offer, acceptance or legally 

binding agreement and does not create any rights or obligations for or on the part of the parties 

pertaining to the subject matter of this letter. 

 

EXPIRATION DATE – This Conditional Will Serve Letter shall expire one (1) year from the date of 

this letter.  Upon expiration, Owner must submit a new request for a new Conditional Will Serve 

Letter to the District for review and consideration. 

 

 Should you have any questions, please contact the undersigned. 

 

      Sincerely, 

 

      JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

 

 

          By:________________________________________ 

      Curt Sauer, General Manager 

 

Page 12 of 49



Page 13 of 49



Page 14 of 49



Page 15 of 49



Page 16 of 49



Page 17 of 49



Page 18 of 49



Page 19 of 49



Page 20 of 49



Page 21 of 49



Page 22 of 49



Page 23 of 49



Page 24 of 49



Page 25 of 49



Page 26 of 49



Page 27 of 49



Page 28 of 49



Page 29 of 49



Page 30 of 49



Page 31 of 49



Page 32 of 49



Page 33 of 49



Page 34 of 49



Page 35 of 49



Page 36 of 49



Page 37 of 49



Page 38 of 49



Page 39 of 49



Page 40 of 49



Page 41 of 49



Page 42 of 49



Page 43 of 49



Page 44 of 49



Page 45 of 49



Page 46 of 49



Page 47 of 49



Page 48 of 49



Page 49 of 49




